
 

SOP Works-2011 Clarification-I 

 
Clarification Ref: No.DGM/SECR/BSK/SOP/015/3255 Dt.25.01.2011 

 
 
 

Clarification 

It is clarified that SOP item no. 9 (a) (i) & 9 (a) (ii) regarding variation (increase/decrease) in quantities specified in 
contract  and item No.6 (a) (4) regarding power delegated to CAO/C for calling of single tender shall be applicable 
with prospective effect in all future works contract. 

 

 

 

 

SOP Works-2011 Clarification-II 

 

Clarification Ref: No.DGM/SECR/BSK/SOP/015/3316 Dt.02.02.2011 
 
 

              Sub: Revised SOP (Works)-2011. 
               

Revised SOP (Works) has come in to effect from 19.01.2011. In continuation to this office letter dated 
25.01.2011, in the context of proceeding of Tender Committee following guidelines are hereby issued with 
consent of HQ/finance. 

 

Sr.No

. 

Position of the tender case To be dealt 

a  TC proceedings not yet started.  As per revised SOP 
b TC proceedings have started and not yet 

completed(No recommendation as yet given 
Same TC will continue till finalization of case, as per 
old SOP (Works). 

c TC has given its recommendation which is yet to be 
accepted. 

Same TC will continue till finalization of case, as per 
old SOP (Works). 

d However, if TC proceeding recommendation has been once accepted by GM in the past, further acceptance of 
that case will lie with GM. 

 

 

 



 

SOP Works-2011 Clarification-III 

 

Clarification Ref: No.DGM/SECR/BSK/SOP/015/3458 Dt.11.03.2011. 
 

 

Sub: Exercising the power of JAG by SS officer (Independent charge) as per revised SOP(Works-2011) 
Ref: Sr.DEE (G)/R’s note no. EL/G/R/W/SOP   dtd.23.02.11.   

 

In reference to above, following clarifications are being issued for exercising the powers of JAG by SS 
officer (independent charge) are as under:- 

 

Item 

No. 

Observations Remarks 

Item No. 
( 4) 

As per item no.4 of SOP(Works), no power delegated to SS to sanctioned 
detailed / revised estimate and JAG is empowered to sanctioned upto ` 2.5 
crore. Whether SS branch officer independent charge (DEE/G/R) is 
empowered to exercise the power of JAG to sanction the detailed/ revised 

estimate upto ` 2.5 crore or not? 

 
 
 
In terms of note no.2 given on 2nd page of 
revised SOP (Works), SS branch officers 
(Independent charge) will exercise the 
powers of JAG. 

Item No. 
(6) A-1 

As per item no. (6) A-1 of SOP(Works), SS officer is empowered to call open 
tender upto ` 20 lakh and JAG upto ` 2 crore in each case. Whether SS 
branch officer I/C (DEE/G/R) is empowered to exercise the power of JAG to 
call the open tender upto ` 2 crore or not? 

Item No. 
(6) A-1 

As per item no. (6) A-1 vide sub para 3 of SOP(Works) , “ all pages of tender 
document should be approved by minimum JAG officer before floating the 
tender. Whether SS branch officer independent charge (DEE/G/R) is 
empowered to exercise the power of JAG for signing the tender document for 
tender floating or not? 

Item No. 
(7) A-1 

As per item no. (7) A-1 of SOP (Works), SS branch officer is empowered upto ` 
1 lakh in each case subject to annual ceiling limit of ` 5 lakh (SS independent 
charge) and JAG up to ` 2 lakh in each case subject to annual ceiling limit of 
` 20 lakh). Whether SS branch officer independent charge (DEE/G/R) is 
empowered to exercise the power of JAG to dispense with the calling of tender 
for works in consultation with associate finance at the stage of acceptance of 
offer upto ` 2 lakh in each case subject to annual ceiling limit of ` 20 lakh or 
not ? 

Sr.Scale branch officer should exercise the 
power given to SS only for this item. 

Item No. 
(8) A 

As per para 1 of table 8A of SOP (Works) tender accepting authority is JAG 
upto ` 2 crore and no power delegated to SS officer. Whether SS brach officer 
independent charge (DEE/G/R) is empowered to exercise the power of JAG to 
acceptance the tender upto ` 2 crore or not? 

Tender Committee & acceptant authority 
should be as per table 8A of SOP(Works-
2011) and for accepting or sitting in tender 
committee SS ( branch officer) can not 
exercise the power of JAG 

 

This has been issued in consultation with associate finance. 



 

 

SOP Works-2011 Clarification-IV 

 

Clarification Ref: No.DGM/SECR/BSK/SOP/015/3480 Dt. 14.03.11 

 

 

        Sub: Regarding formation of tender committee against table 8A of revised SOP(Works)-2011. 
          Ref: - (i) Sr.DEN(co-ord)/BSP’s lr.no.W/A/T/STC/10-11/304   dtd.01.03.2011. 
                 (ii) FA&CAO/SECR’s lr.no.HQ/SECR/Fin/Misc/440/Spl dt.07.03.11. 
 

 

As already clarified by associate finance vide reference (ii) above, following clarifications are issued on 
the above subject:- 
 

Sr. 

No. 

Clarification asked Clarified 

1 Whether the Jr.Scale/Sr.Scale/JAG head quartered 
officers who are not looking after the work of a particular 
jurisdiction can act as convener of TC of others 
jurisdiction? 

Sectional DEN/Sr.DEN will act as convenor of all 
tenders pertain to their jurisdiction, Tender will be 
accepted by next higher level. 

2 When variation in agreement is unavoidable who will 
initiate the same, the convener or the officer in charge of 
the section and whose sanction will be required in this 
case. 

Variations therefore have to be initiated by the 
convenor as stated above. 

3 Whether the JA Grade officer of his own jurisdiction can 
act as the Tender Accepting Authority in the light of 
Canons of Financial propriety Para F/116. 

Para 116(2) of Canons of financial propriety is not 
inconsistent with JAG officer acting as TAA in his 
jurisdiction. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

SOP Works-2011 Clarification-V 

 

 

 

 

 

Clarification Ref: No.DGM/SECR/BSK/SOP/015/4743 Dt.01.12.2011. 

 
 
 

 

Sub: SOP on Works Matter- Agency for issue of NIT and floating of tender. 
 
Ref: CRSE/SECR’s Lr.No.2011/109/002/025/9447   dtd.24.11.11. 
   

 
 

 

 

Item 

No. 

Clarification asked Clarified 

6 A-1 The agency for issue of NIT and floating of tender i.e. 
(either division or Headquarter) has not been clearly 
defined in SOP  due to which departments are 
following different procedure which is inviting finance 
and vigilance observations. For following an uniform 
practice, it is necessary to pin point the appropriate 
agency (Division or Headquarter) to issue NIT and 
floating of tender fixing suitable monetary value. 

Item 6 A-1 of SOP (Works Matter) 
delegates Power to authorities for 
calling open tender. Once the 
authority (within whose power calling 
of open tender rests) approves the 
calling the  open tender, the NIT and 
floating of tender should be done by 
the office who will execute the work. 

 

 

 

This has been issued in consultation with associate finance. 


